
City Council

City of Jacksonville Beach

Agenda

11 North Third Street
Jacksonville Beach, Florida

Council Chambers7:00 PMMonday, October 2, 2017

MEMORANDUM TO:

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida

Council Members:

The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council.

CALL TO ORDER

OPENING CEREMONIES: INVOCATION, FOLLOWED BY SALUTE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Special City Council Meeting Held September 18, 201717-171a.

Regular City Council Meeting Held September 18, 201717-172b.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

Update on Hurricane Irma Restoration Efforts17-177

CITY CLERK

CITY MANAGER

Provide Direction on the Master Plan for the Golf Course17-173a.

Page 1 City of Jacksonville Beach Printed on 9/28/2017



October 2, 2017City Council Agenda

Award Bid No. 1617-12 to C & C Powerline17-174b.

Approve the Replacement of (2) 800MHZ Radio Antennas (1-Transmit and 
1-Receive) on the City-Owned Radio Tower

17-175c.

RESOLUTIONS

ORDINANCES

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8096 (First Reading)

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF
JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE (THE
"PARTIES") TO ALLOW THE JACKSONVILLE BEACH COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO UTILIZE TAX INCREMENT FUNDS
OUTSIDE THE REDEVELOPMENT AREAS OF BOTH THE DOWNTOWN
AND SOUTHEND COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREAS FOR THE
REPAIR AND CAPACITY IMPROVEMENTS OF THE CONVEYANCE
SYSTEMS FOR THE STORMWATER COLLECTION FACILITIES WITHIN
THE REDEVELOPMENT AREAS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

17-176

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE

In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person desirous of appealing any decision reached at this
meeting may need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them.  Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the City Clerk or to the recording secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting.  These forms
are available at the entrance of the City Council Chambers for your convenience.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities
needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (904)
247-6299, extension 10, no later than one business day before the meeting.

Page 2 City of Jacksonville Beach Printed on 9/28/2017



Minutes of Special City Council Meeting 

held Monday, September 18, 2017, at 6:00 P.M. 

in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Charlie Latham called the meeting to order. 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor: Charlie Latham 

Council Members: Keith Doherty Christine Hoffman 
Lee Buck (absent) Phil Vogelsang 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Deputy City 
Heads, and City Clerk Laurie Scott. 

PURPOSE OF MEETING 

Mayor Latham stated that the purpose of the meeti j 

• 

Public Hearing 

and, 

JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH 

the fiscal year 2017-2018 . 

At this time, Mayor Latham opened a Public Hearing on the Millage Rate and the Operating Budget. 

Speaker: 
• Michael Connelly, 65 Tall wood Road, Jacksonville Beach, expressed his concerns about the 

increased millage rate. 

SC 170918 min Page 1 of 3 



Minutes of Special City Council Meeting 

held Monday, September 18, 2017 

Mr. Forbes summarized the breakdown of the City's General Fund, distribution of the property taxes 
with local and state agencies, the City's millage rate history, and provided a rate comparison to other 
cities in the state. He noted that this year was the first year since the 2008 recession that property values 
have recovered the values that was lost during the recession. 

He further explained the increase in the millage rate is primarily for adjusting the City's Public Safety 
employee salaries. The millage rate increase is necessary so that the City can be competitive and continue 
to recruit and retain Police and Fire personnel. 

Mr. Forbes reported the Operating Budget had been prepared usi 
of assessed taxable value, which is less than both the 2014 ra 
average of $4.8178. For the past three consecutive years, the 

MILLAGE RATE-FY 2017-2018 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson, seconded by Ms. 
Operating Purposes of $3.9947 mills, Resolution No. 198 

Discussion: 

Mr. Doherty asked about the status oflabor negof 
expressed his concerns since Public Safet�,: t 

ice and Fire Departments. He 
e increase. He remarked that 

get should not be decided upon until decisions regarding the increased millage r 
the outcome of the labor negotiations i�,K. ·ll<J1W 

Mr. 

increase for the citize · 
being higher [especially 

onsidered to conduct negotiations. He noted that the 
d th t his goal is not to budget for one year but the 

· o budget sufficiently to keep our facilities and 
dget could be made at mid-year or use the City's 

e millage rate increase and that it was the right decision based 
dling of previous City budgets. 

ition to the millage rate increase. She stated this would be a dual tax 
e City increasing the millage rate and the property assessment values 

e non-homesteaded properties]. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - offman, Thomason, Vogelsang, and Mayor Latham 
Nayes - Doherty, Wilson 
The motion carried by a 4-2 vote. 

OPERATING BUDGET-FY 2017-2018 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson, seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt Resolution 1989-201_7, 
adopting the Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 of $164,505,457. 

SC 170918 min Page 2 of3 



Minutes of Special City Council Meeting 

held Monday, September 18, 2017 

Discussion: 

There was no discussion by staff or the Council. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor Latham 
The motion carried. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business coming before the Council, 
6:30 P.M. 

Submitted by: Laurie Scott 
City Clerk 

SC 170918 min 

Approval: 

Page 3 of 3 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 

held Monday, September 18, 2017, at 7:00 P.M. 

in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH 

Council Member Vogelsang gave the invocation, followed by the salute to the flag. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Latham called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor: William C. Latham 

Council Members: Lee Buck (absent) 

Bruce Thomason 

Financial Officer Karen Nelson, Human 
Allen Putnam, Parks and Recreation }Jji� 
City Clerk Genelee McLawhorn. 

1eeting held September 5, 2017 
1 
· eeting held on September 5, 2017 

• Sonja itch, 1425 9
th Street South, Jacksonville Beach, spoke about her views on 

community relations and the 3D political art posted on the fence around her property. 

• Chuck McCue, 1908 3
rd Street, Neptune Beach, thanked Beaches Energy for their 

efforts in restoring power to the beaches community and discussed a local charity 
event raising donations for those in need after the hurricane. 

•· Judy Malmstrom, 2042 South 2nd Street, Jacksonville Beach, expressed her gratitude 
to the community for coming together to help her during Hurricane Irma. 

CC 170918 mins Page 1 of 8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

CC 170918 mins 

Item #17-164, Update on Hurricane Irma 

Mr. Forbes invited the City Department Heads to provide updates regarding the 
storm. Staff addressed each of their Department's actions before, during, and after 
Hurricane Irma. 

Mayor Latham and Council Members thanked all City employees for their efforts 
as well as their families for their sacrifice during Hurricane Irma. 

Mr. Vogelsang asked Mr. Edwards about the debr · c 
picking up leaves. Mr. Edwards responded by 
their leaves, but if they had, Advanced Disp 
on a limited basis. Mr. Edwards further 
regulations, vegetative debris and constructi 
required to be separated. 

Mr. Doherty asked Police Chief Dooley if t 
mandated, was effective. Chief Dooley stated it was 
people off the streets as well as to be ab approach t 
the streets during the Hurricane. 

Mr. Doherty stated he was asked hy there was such short 
notice on reporting shelter locati ayor responded by stating 
the shelters were in Jacks e, a a t Operations Center [EOC] of 
Jacksonville was in co releasin ation to the public. 

hillip Powe , y Scout, and student from Episcopal 
ouncil Meeting to obtain his Community Service 

stake in his Monday, September 11, 201 7, 
Repo e reported it had rained 27 inches in the last 24 

our gauge read but Ty Edwards checked and the gauge was 
st 10 inches in a 24-hour period, not 27 inches. 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to accept 
the financial reports for the month of August 201 7, as submitted by the 
Chief Financial Officer. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, V ogelsang, Wilson, and 
Mayor Latham. 
The motion carried. 

Page 2 of 8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

(b) Item #17-166, Approve a Draw from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund 

(c) 

For the following: 

1. Equipment and Related Expenses for Ongoing Crime Prevention and 
Community Relations Programs; and 

2. Continue Funding the Part-Time Police Volunteer Coordinator for the 
Citizen Police Academy Alumni Association and Citizens on Patrol 
Volunteers 

Motion: 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes explained the money to fund t · 
time position would come from mo � , izetl during arres 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Hoffman, 
Mao 
T 

Discu I :o r. Forbes explained that this is for the same programs previously 
mentioned. owever, this fund would be used to pay overtime to those officers who 
work th , events. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hoffman, and 
Mayor Latham 
The motion carried. 

(d) Item #17-168, Award Bid No. 1617-13 Unleaded Gasoline & Diesel Fuel to the 
Lowest Qualified Bidder, James River Solutions 

CC 170918 mins Page 3 of 8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to award 
bid number 1617-13 for the supply of Unleaded Gasoline and Diesel 
fuel to James River Solutions as described in the memorandum from the 
Property and Procurement Officer dated Septemeber 6, 2017. 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes reported that this is for Unleaded Gas and Diesel used by 
the city. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, and 
Mayor Latham 
The motion carried. 

RESOLUTIONS: 

CC 170918 mins 

Item #17-169, RESOLUTION NO. 1994-201 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read � • 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the :6 llowing: 

,! 

discussion by the Council, Mayor Latham called for a roll call 

Roll cal vote: Ayes - Wilson, Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, and 
Mayor Latham 
The motion carried. 

Page 4 of 8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

ORDINANCES: 

CC 170918 mins 

Item #17-170, ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8094 (Second Reading) 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2017-8094, by 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 

"AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO INCLUDE, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, DRINKING WATER DISTRI I LI ES, SANITARY 
SEWER COLLECTION LINES, PROPE IONS TO SAID 
LINES, ABANDONMENT OF PROP. 
RELATED AND ASSOCIATED WORK 
EXTENSION OF HOPSON ROAD IN 
BEACH, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR 
THEREOF BY THE IMPOSITION OF S 
LEVIED AND ASSESSED AGAINST TH ·p 
FRONTING UPON SUCH IMPROVEMENTS, IN 
BENEFITS BESTOWED UPON AC PROPER SSESSED; AND 
DESIGNATING A TIME FQ H G OBJ TIONS TO THE 
ENFORCEMENT THEREOF D P D G O OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING THERETO. 

Motion: nded by Ms. Hoffman, to 

the 

2. Ado to its se d and final reading, Amended Ordinance No. 
2017 80 4, for the special assessment of properties benefiting from 
the 't),, financed water and sewer infrastructure improvements to 

tructed along the private access extension of Hopson Road. 

oro s ex11 t ed that staff took the advice from the City Council from the last 
meetin to r ce the cost of the Public Water-Sewer Services and Related Work 
for eight perties on Hopson Road. The City was able to subtract the following 
costs: 

• Grant reimbursement [$10,000 less assessment fee per property], 
• 15% contingency fee, and 
• Cost of the engineering work for the assessments. 

By absorbing these costs, this would now reduce the individual assessment fees 
from $41,207.09 to $22,200.43 for those eight properties on Hopson Road. 

Page 5 of 8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

Also, at the suggestion of Mr. Vogelsang, the costs for Property Water-Sewer 
Connects, Abandon Septic Tanks and Related Work to four additional properties 
on Hopson Road, would now be absorbed by the City in the amount of $7,564.79 
for each property. 

These were significant reductions according to Mr. Forbes. He stated the City 
foresees more development in the area, which would make it imperative that they 
are provided these City services. 

Mayor Latham opened the public hearing. 

Speakers: 

• Lynn Hileman, 22 Hopson Road, Jackson 
his house to conform to this plan; however, 

e r  esigned 
· · the rest 

of his neighbors are forced to conform. r 
community and wondered what they paid for the 
the City utilities. 

• Spike Cissel, 1 7 Hopson Road each as about correspondence 

• 

that his son sent to the Counci put in the record. [attached] 
se it would bring v�lue to his 

cess was rushed. He believes that 
e together and share ideas. 

He noted he 'Yas happy , ay 
property, however, wa : · cerned t 
there should have 

ton Street, Jacksonville, explained that she was there 
be and Jaqueline Poland, 24 Hudson Road, 

y the developer who filled the marsh or the 
e cost of the infrastructure. 

5 Singleton Street, Jacksonville, stated he was also there to 
d Jaqueline Poland, 24 Hudson Road, Jacksonville Beach, 

: ved that putting the burden of paying an unexpected $22,000 
,11rnnt;Qr a cou with a fixed income, is unfair. He also expressed concern if the 

ck could travel on Hopson Road. 

• orton, 28 Hopson Road, Jacksonville Beach, supported this plan because 
he elieves this would bring value to the neighborhood. 

• Kathy Cole, 30 Hopson Road, Jacksonville Beach, expressed her concerns about 
the construction of the water and sewer lines without damage to her property. 
She requested that she and those who wish not to hook up to City services be 
exempt from this project. 

CC 170918 mins Page 6 of8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

CC 170918 mins 

Communications: 

1. Email communication dated September 6, 2017, from Jimmy Cissel, 26 
Hopson Road, Jacksonville Beach to Mr. Thomason. 

2. Contact form via City website addressed to Mayor, City Council, and 
City Manager's office from Jimmy Cissel, 26 Hopson Road, Jacksonville 
Beach. 

3. Contact form via City website addressed to the Mayor, City Council, and 
City Manager's office from Nikki Lewis, 13225 Singleton Street, 
Jacksonville. 

Mayor Latham closed the Public Hearing. 

Discussion: Mr. Vogelsang questioned how 
to hook up to City services. Mr. Forbes respo 
sewer and engineering costs. Mr. Vogelsang 
properties must pay an equal amount. He su 
other suggestions. 

wer lines up to the 
or.Bes stated according to 
itted. 

, that th · City should proceed with the project. His main 
ety. The project would bring two fire hydrants to Hopson 

r V9gelsang clatli , ed that if the easement is permitted, then the property owners 
wd at�� able t ' nnect to City services for free. If opting out of the project then 
they �1 Lt out on $8,000 that the City was willing to absorb. 

Ms. Wil en thanked Mr.· Edwards and Robin Smith for their hard work towards 
reducing the costs of the assessments. She asked if the twelve month grace period 
could be extended. Mr. Edward stated that according to the City Ordinance, they 
would inform the residents that the services are available and then start charging 
for water and sewer services. He further explained if a property owner does not 
give a temporary construction easement, this would pose a risk of the grant funding 
being reduced and the City would be responsible for the remainder of the cost. 

Ms. Wilson again clarified that according to the City Ordinance no one could opt 
out and extend the 12 month period to hook up to services. Mr. Forbes stated that 

Page 7 of 8 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, September 18, 2017 

Submitted by: 

CC 170918 mins 

is correct unless the City Ordinance is changed. She stated this is a great project. 
However, she still has concerns forcing someone to do this. 

Mr. Doherty reclarified if anyone could opt out of the project. Mr. Edwards stated 
no one could be allowed to opt out of the assessment by City Ordinance. They 
could opt out of giving a temporary construction easement. [to construct water and 
sewer service lines to their property] 

Mayor Latham asked if Hurricane Irma flooded out Hopson Road. Fire Chief 
David Whitmill stated that on Tuesday afternoon, th ater gone up to the 
houses; however, there was less flooding fro Humcane I a than Hurricane 

4 

Matthew. 

Mr. Vogelsang suggested voting yes, and co 
the property owners if they would like to conn 

ason, Vogelsang, Wilson, and 

r business, the meeting adjourned at 8:58 P.M. 

Approval: 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Date: 
---------

Page 8 of 8 






















































